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(1) That has management responsi-
bility for a project; 

(2) In which the ownership entity, in-
cluding its general partner or partners 
(if applicable), has an ownership inter-
est; and 

(3) Over which the ownership entity 
exerts effective control. 

Effective control. The ability to direct, 
alter, supervise, or otherwise influence 
the actions, policies, decisions, duties, 
employment, or personnel of the man-
agement agent. 

Entity. An individual corporation; 
company; association; partnership; au-
thority; firm; society; trust; state, 
local government or agency thereof; or 
any other organization or group of peo-
ple. 

Ownership interest. Any direct or indi-
rect interest in the stock, partnership 
interests, beneficial interests (for a 
trust) or other medium of equity par-
ticipation. An indirect interest in-
cludes equity participation in any enti-
ty that holds a management interest 
(e.g. general partner, managing mem-
ber of an LLC, majority stockholder, 
trustee) or minimum equity interest 
(e.g., a 25% or more limited partner, 
10% or more stockholder) in the owner-
ship entity of the management agent. 

(b) General. The Assistant Secretary 
for Housing—Federal Housing Commis-
sioner, or his or her designee, or the 
Assistant Secretary for Public and In-
dian Housing, or his or her designee, 
may initiate a civil money penalty 
against any owner, any general partner 
of a partnership owner, or any agent 
employed to manage the property that 
has an identity of interest with the 
owner or the general partner of a part-
nership owner of a property receiving 
project-based assistance under section 
8 of the United States Housing Act of 
1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437f) for a knowing and 
material breach of a housing assistance 
payments contract. Examples of cov-
ered violations include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

(1) Failure to provide decent, safe, 
and sanitary housing pursuant to sec-
tion 8 of the United States Housing Act 
of 1937 and 24 CFR 5.703; or 

(2) Knowing or willful submission of 
false, fictitious, or fraudulent state-
ments or requests for housing assist-
ance payments to the Secretary or to 

any department or agency of the 
United States. 

(c) Maximum penalty. The maximum 
penalty for each violation under this 
section is $25,000. 

(d) Payment of penalty. No payment of 
a civil money penalty levied under this 
section shall be payable out of project 
income. 

(e) Exceptions. The Secretary may not 
impose penalties under this section for 
a violation, if a material cause of the 
violation is the failure of the Sec-
retary, an agent of the Secretary, or a 
public housing agency to comply with 
an existing agreement. 

[66 FR 63442, Dec. 6, 2001, as amended at 74 
FR 2751, Jan. 15, 2009] 

Subpart C—Procedures 

§ 30.70 Prepenalty notice. 

(a) Prior to determining whether to 
issue a complaint under § 30.85, the offi-
cial designated in subpart B of this 
part, or his or her designee (or the 
chairperson of the Mortgagee Review 
Board, or his or her designee, in ac-
tions under § 30.35), shall issue a writ-
ten notice to the respondent. This 
prepenalty notice shall include the fol-
lowing: 

(1) That HUD is considering seeking a 
civil money penalty; 

(2) The specific violations alleged; 
(3) The maximum civil money pen-

alty that may be imposed; 
(4) The opportunity to reply in writ-

ing to the designated program official 
within 30 days after receipt of the no-
tice; 

(5) That failure to respond within the 
30-day period may result in issuance of 
a complaint under § 30.85 without con-
sideration of any information that the 
respondent may wish to provide; and 

(6) That if a complaint is issued 
under § 30.85, the respondent may re-
quest a hearing before an administra-
tive law judge in accordance with 
§ 30.95. 

(b) Obligation to preserve documents. 
Upon receipt of the prepenalty notice, 
the respondent is required to preserve 
and maintain all documents or data, 
including electronically stored data, 
within his or her possession or control 
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that may relate to the violations al-
leged in the prepenalty notice. The De-
partment shall also preserve such docu-
ments or data upon the issuance of the 
prepenalty notice. 

[74 FR 2751, Jan. 15, 2009] 

§ 30.75 Response to prepenalty notice. 
(a) The response shall be in a format 

prescribed in the prepenalty notice. 
The response shall address the factors 
set forth in § 30.80 and include any ar-
guments opposing the imposition of a 
civil money penalty that the respond-
ent may wish to present. 

(b) In any case where respondent 
seeks to raise ability to pay as an af-
firmative defense or argument in miti-
gation, the respondent shall provide 
documentary evidence as part of its re-
sponse. 

[74 FR 2751, Jan. 15, 2009] 

§ 30.80 Factors in determining amount 
of civil money penalty. 

After determining that a respondent 
has committed a violation as described 
in subpart B of this part that subjects 
the respondent to liability under this 
part, the officials designated in subpart 
B of this part shall consider the fol-
lowing factors to determine the 
amount of penalty to seek against a re-
spondent, if any: 

(a) The gravity of the offense; 
(b) Any history of prior offenses; 
(c) The ability to pay the penalty, 

which ability shall be presumed unless 
specifically raised as an affirmative de-
fense or mitigating factor by the re-
spondent; 

(d) The injury to the public; 
(e) Any benefits received by the vio-

lator; 
(f) The extent of potential benefit to 

other persons; 
(g) Deterrence of future violations; 
(h) The degree of the violator’s culpa-

bility; 
(i) With respect to Urban Homestead 

violations under § 30.30, the expendi-
tures made by the violator in connec-
tion with any gross profit derived; and 

(j) Such other matters as justice may 
require. 

(k) In addition to the above factors, 
with respect to violations under 
§§ 30.45, 30.55, 30.60, and 30.68, the Assist-

ant Secretary for Housing—Federal 
Housing Commissioner, or his or her 
designee, or the Assistant Secretary 
for Public and Indian Housing, or his or 
her designee, shall also consider: 

(1) Any injury to tenants; and/or 
(2) Any injury to lot owners. 
(l) HUD may consider the factors list-

ed in paragraphs (a) through (k) of this 
section to determine the appropriate-
ness of imposing a penalty under 
§ 30.35(c)(2); however, HUD cannot 
change the amount of the penalty 
under § 30.35(c)(2). 

[74 FR 2751, Jan. 15, 2009] 

§ 30.85 Complaint. 
(a) General. Upon the expiration of 

the period for the respondent to submit 
a response to the prepenalty notice, 
the official designated in subpart B of 
this part, or his or her designee (or the 
Mortgagee Review Board in actions 
under § 30.35) shall determine whether 
to seek a civil money penalty. Such de-
termination shall be based upon a re-
view of the prepenalty notice, the re-
sponse, if any, and the factors listed at 
§ 30.80. A determination by the Mort-
gagee Review Board to seek a civil 
money penalty shall be by a majority 
vote of the Board. 

(b) If a determination is made to seek 
a civil money penalty, government 
counsel shall issue a complaint to the 
respondent on behalf of the officials 
listed at subpart B of this part or the 
Mortgagee Review Board for violations 
under § 30.35. The complaint shall be 
served upon respondent and simulta-
neously filed with the Office of Admin-
istrative Law Judges, and shall state 
the following: 

(1) The factual basis for the decision 
to seek a penalty; 

(2) The applicable civil money pen-
alty statute; 

(3) The amount of penalty sought; 
(4) The right to submit a response in 

writing, within 15 days of receipt of the 
complaint, requesting a hearing on any 
material fact in the complaint, or on 
the appropriateness of the penalty 
sought; 

(5) The address to which a response 
must be sent; 

(6) That the failure to submit a re-
sponse may result in the imposition of 
the penalty in the amount sought. 
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(c) A copy of this part and of 24 CFR 
part 26, subpart B, shall be included 
with the complaint. 

(d) Service of the complaint. The com-
plaint shall be served on the respond-
ent by first class mail, personal deliv-
ery, or other means. 

(e) Before taking an action under 
§§ 30.35 for violation of 12 U.S.C. § 1735f– 
14(b)(1)(D) or (F), 30.36, or 30.50 for vio-
lation of 12 U.S.C. 1723i(b)(1)(G) or (I), 
the Secretary shall inform the Attor-
ney General of the United States, 
which may be accomplished by pro-
viding a copy of the complaint. The 
Secretary shall include in the body of 
the complaint a statement confirming 
that this action was taken. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 74 
FR 2752, Jan. 15, 2009] 

§ 30.90 Response to the complaint. 
(a) Request for a hearing. If the re-

spondent desires a hearing before an 
administrative law judge, the respond-
ent shall submit a request for a hearing 
to HUD and the Office of Administra-
tive Law Judges no later than 15 days 
following receipt of the complaint, as 
required by statute. This mandated pe-
riod cannot be extended. 

(b) Answer. In any case in which the 
respondent has requested a hearing, 
the respondent shall serve upon HUD 
and file with the Office of Administra-
tive Law Judges a written answer to 
the complaint within 30 days of receipt 
of the complaint, unless such time is 
extended by the administrative law 
judge for good cause. The answer shall 
include the admission or denial of each 
allegation of liability made in the com-
plaint; any defense on which the re-
spondent intends to rely; any reasons 
why the civil money penalty should be 
less than the amount sought in the 
complaint, based on the factors listed 
at § 30.80; and the name, address, and 
telephone number of the person who 
will act as the respondent’s representa-
tive, if any. 

(c) Filing with the administrative law 
judges. HUD shall file the complaint 
and response with the Docket Clerk, 
Office of Administrative Law Judges, 
in accordance with § 26.37 of this title. 
If no response is submitted, then HUD 
may file a motion for default judg-
ment, together with a copy of the com-

plaint, in accordance with § 26.39 of this 
title. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 74 
FR 2752, Jan. 15, 2009; 74 FR 7313, Feb. 17, 
2009; 74 FR 4635, Jan. 26, 2009] 

§ 30.95 Hearings. 
Hearings under this part shall be con-

ducted in accordance with the proce-
dures applicable to hearings in accord-
ance with the Administrative Proce-
dure Act, set forth in 24 CFR part 26. 

[74 FR 2752, Jan. 15, 2009] 

§ 30.100 Settlement of a civil money 
penalty action. 

The officials listed at subpart B of 
this part, or their designees (or the 
Mortgagee Review Board, or designee, 
for violations under § 30.35), are author-
ized to enter into settlement agree-
ments resolving civil money penalty 
actions that may be brought under part 
30. 

[74 FR 2752, Jan. 15, 2009] 

PART 35—LEAD-BASED PAINT POI-
SONING PREVENTION IN CER-
TAIN RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES 

Subpart A—Disclosure of Known Lead- 
Based Paint Hazards Upon Sale or 
Lease of Residential Property 

Sec. 
35.80 Purpose. 
35.82 Scope and applicability. 
35.84 Effective dates. 
35.86 Definitions. 
35.88 Disclosure requirements for sellers 

and lessors. 
35.90 Opportunity to conduct an evaluation. 
35.92 Certification and acknowledgment of 

disclosure. 
35.94 Agent responsibilities. 
35.96 Enforcement. 
35.98 Impact on State and local require-

ments. 

Subpart B—General Lead-Based Paint Re-
quirements and Definitions for All Pro-
grams 

35.100 Purpose and applicability. 
35.105 Effective dates. 
35.106 Information collection requirements. 
35.110 Definitions. 
35.115 Exemptions. 
35.120 Options. 
35.125 Notice of evaluation and hazard re-

duction activities. 
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